
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the  Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the  financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid  financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the  Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the  financial statements.

 Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the  financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the  financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the  Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,



including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the  financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the  Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these  financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the  financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these  financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its  financial statements – Refer Note 25 to the  financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;



iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

______________________________
per Ajay Bansal
Partner
Membership Number: 502243
UDIN: 21502243AAAAAD1792
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: April 16, 2021
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 Notes 
 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

ASSETS

1 Non-current assets

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 4A 1.36                             1.41                             

(b) Capital Work in progress 0.24                             0.03                             

(c) Intangible assets 4B 487.59                         511.22                         

(d) Financial assets

(i) Trade Receivables 5 -                              1.66                             

(ii) Others financial assets 6 3.12                             3.12                             

(e) Other non-current assets 11 -                              2.40                             

(f) Income tax assets (net of provisions) 6.56                             7.98                             

Total non current assets 498.87                        527.82                        

2 Current assets

(a) Inventories 7 2.22                             2.30                             

(b) Financial assets

(i)  Investments 8 9.87                             49.57                           

(ii) Trade receivables 9 4.10                             17.20                           

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 1.85                             3.06                             

(iv) Other financial assets 6 5.17                             13.99                           

(c) Other current assets 11 6.03                             12.87                           

(d) Income tax assets (net of provisions) 0.01                             1.66                             

Total current assets 29.25                          100.65                        

Total assets 528.12                        628.47                        

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital 12 47.11                           32.11                           

(b) Other equity (35.52)                          (12.06)                          

Total equity 11.59                          20.05                          

2 LIABILITIES

Non-current Liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings 13 -                              -                              

(ii) Others financial liabilites 16 -                              14.38                           

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 30 6.38                             21.41                           

(c) Other non-current liabilities 14 25.83                           27.23                           

(d) Provisions 17 0.53                             0.64                             

Total non current liabilities 32.74                          63.66                          

Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 13A 425.00                         -                              

(ii) Trade payables

(a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises

and Small Enterprises
15 1.05                             0.88                             

(b) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other

than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises
26.83                           56.32                           

(iii) Other financial liabilities 16 24.77                           478.55                         

(b) Other current liabilities 14 5.99                             8.64                             

(c) Provisions 17 0.16                             0.38                             

Total current liabilities 483.80                        544.77                        

Total liabilities 516.54                        608.43                        

Total equity and liabilities 528.12                        628.47                        

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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Vinay Chaurasia

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram Place: Goa

Date : April 16, 2021 Date : April 16, 2021

Particulars

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Digitally signed by Chikkala 
Sateesh Kumar 
Date: 2021.04.16 17:56:58 +05'30'

Digitally signed by SAUVICK 
MAZUMDER 
Date: 2021.04.16 17:59:44 
+05'30'

VINAY 
CHAURASIA

Digitally signed by VINAY CHAURASIA 
Date: 2021.04.16 18:24:56 +05'30'

Digitally signed by AJAY BANSAL
DN: cn=AJAY BANSAL, c=IN,
o=Personal,
email=ajay.bansal@srb.in
Date: 2021.04.16 21:27:23 +05'30'

AJAY
BANSAL



Notes
 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 
 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 

I Income

(a) Revenue from operations 18 108.33                         146.56                  
(b) Other Operating income 18 0.40                            24.57                    
(c) Other income 19 3.12                            3.74                      

Total income 111.85                          174.87                   

II Expenses

(a) Employee benefits expense 20 2.09                            4.03                      

(b) Royalty 33.89                           54.97                    

(c) Finance costs 21 38.52                           42.40                    

(d) Depreciation and amortization expense 4A & 4B 25.40                           25.08                    

(e) Other expenses 22 35.57                           43.99                    

Total expenses 135.46                          170.48                   

III Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and tax (23.61)                          4.39                       

IV Exceptional items 23 -                              28.72                     

V Loss before tax (23.61)                          (24.32)                   

VI Tax expense/(Benefit) 29

(a) Current tax -                              (0.44)                     

(b) Deferred tax (15.03)                         (55.69)                   

(15.03)                         (56.13)                   

VII Profit/ (Loss) after tax (8.58)                            31.81                     

VIII Other comprehensive Income /(Loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Re-measurement loss on defined benefit obligations 0.12                            (0.29)                     

IX Total comprehensive Income /(Loss) for the year (8.46)                            31.52                     

X Earnings/ (Loss) per equity share 

(a) Basic -Face value 10 /- 24 (1.82)                           9.91                      

(b) Diluted -Face value 10 /- 24 (1.82)                           1.90                      

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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 As at              

March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net (Loss) before tax                   (23.61) (24.32)                  
 Adjustments for : 
 Depreciation and amortisation expense                     25.40                     25.08 
 Interest expense                     38.52                     42.40 
 Interest income                      (0.38)                      (0.12)
Realised and Unrealised gain on financial assets held for trading                     (0.92)                      (1.76)

 Deferred government grant                     (1.40)                      (1.40)

 Non Moving Inventory provision/(reversal)                       0.08                      (0.18)

 Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment                          -                         0.57 
 Operating Profits before working capital changes 37.68                  40.28                   

Working capital adjustments
(Increase) in inventories                       0.00 (0.65)                    
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables and loans                     14.76 (3.61)                    
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial and non financial assets                     18.06 (3.39)                    
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payable                   (28.99) 34.83                    
(Decrease) in other liabilities and provisions                   (34.82) (7.40)                    
Cash flow generated from operations 6.70                    60.05                   

Income tax (paid)/refund (net)                       2.63 (3.86)                    
Net cash flow generated from operations (A) 9.33                    56.19                   

B. Cash flows from investing activities

 Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangibles  (1.94)                    (5.68)                    
                (153.35) (170.75)                 

 Proceeds from sale of short term investments                    193.97 156.95                  

Interest received 0.38                     0.12                      
 Net cash generated/(used in) investing activities (B) 39.07                  (19.35)                 

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Re payment of Non Convertible Debenture (refer note 13) (425.00)                -                       
Proceeds from Inter company loan  (refer note 13A) 425.00                 -                       
Interest and finance charges paid (49.61)                  (36.24)                  

 Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (49.61)                 (36.24)                 

(1.21)                   0.59                     

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (Refer note-10)                      3.06 2.47                     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer note -10) 1.85                    3.06                     

Notes:
1. The figures in bracket indicates outflow

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

Particulars

 Purchases of short term investments  

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (A+B+C)

2. The above cash flow has been prepared under the "indirect method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind As) 7 -

Statement of Cash Flows.
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(a) Equity Share Capital
Particulars Number of 

shares

INR Crores

As at  March 31, 2020 32,108,000      32.11                     

As at  March 31, 2021 47,108,000      47.11                     

(b) Other Equity

Particulars Equity component of 

compound financial 

instrument  -

See Note 13(ii)

 Share 

Premium 

Account

Retained 

earnings

Total equity

Balance as at March 31, 2019                            148.85 -            (192.43)         (43.58)                  
Loss for the year                                    -   -             31.81              31.81                     

Other comprehensive loss                                    -   -             (0.29)               (0.29)                      

Balance as at March 31, 2020                            148.85 -                      (160.91)                    (12.06)

Retained earnings (refer note 13 (note ii))                                 1.15 -                            (1.15)                         0.00 

Reduction in Deemed equity to converted 

equity shares

                            (15.00) -            -                  (15.00)                    

Loss for the year                                    -   -             (8.58)               (8.58)                      
Equity share premium                            (135.00) 135.00        -                  -                         

Other comprehensive loss                                    -   -             0.12                0.12                       

Balance as at March 31, 2021 0.00                              135.00       (170.52)         (35.52)                  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 

1. Company Overview 

 

Vizag General Cargo Berth Private Limited (the “Company”) has been set up to develop, establish, construct, 

operate and maintain a project related to mechanization of coal handling facilities and upgradation of general 

cargo berth at outer harbour of Visakhapatnam Port (the “Project”) under design, build, finance, operate and 

transfer (“DBFOT”) basis. A 'Concession Agreement' entered into between the Company and Board of Trustees 

for Vishakhapatnam Port (the “Concessioning Authority”) granted the Company an exclusive licence for 

designing, engineering, financing, constructing, equipping, operating and maintaining the Project.  

 

The concession is granted for a period of 30 years commencing from October 8, 2010 i.e. date of award of 

concession. The Company started its commercial operations effective March 15, 2013. The Company is entitled 

to recover tariff notified from time to time by the Tariff Authority for Major Ports, from the users of project 

facilities and services. On the expiry of the concession period the Company shall transfer the project assets to 

the concessioning authority in accordance with the concession agreement.  

 

The registered office of the Company is SIPCOT Industrial Complex Madurai Bye Pass Road, T. V. Puram P.O 

Thoothukudi Tamil Nadu 628002 India. The financial statements were approved for issuance by the Directors 

on April 16, 2021. 

2. Basis of preparation  

 

a) Basis of preparation and compliance with Ind AS 

 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 

notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 

other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). 

 

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is 

initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 

hitherto in use. 

 

b) Basis of measurement 

 

Read with note 35, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost 

convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial assets and liabilities which are 

measured at fair value (Refer note 3(d) below). 

 

 

3. Significant accounting policies 

The Company has applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial 

statements. 

 

a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

Recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 

impairment losses. 



 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and 

non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working 

condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling 

and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. Spares are capitalized when they meet 

the definition of property, plant and equipment. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on 

initial recognition expenditure to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a 

separate component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure. 

Land acquired free of cost or at below market rate from the government is recognized at fair value with 

corresponding credit to deferred income. 

Subsequent costs and disposal 

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value 

only if it increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed 

standard of performance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including 

day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement 

of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred. 

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing 

the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are 

recognized net within other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss. 

Depreciation 

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method (SLM) to 

allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives (determined by the 

management based on technical estimates) as given below. Management’s assessment of independent 

technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of 

the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance support. 

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 

reporting period. 

 

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows: 

Asset Useful life (in years) 

Office equipment 5 

Vehicles 8 

Furniture and fixture 10 

 

b) Intangible assets 

 

- Port concession rights 

 

The Port concession rights as “Intangible Assets” arising from a service concession arrangement, in which 

the grantor controls or regulates the services provided and the prices charged, and also controls any 

significant residual interest in the infrastructure such as property, plant and equipment, irrespective 

whether the infrastructure is existing infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or 

purchased by the company as part of the service concession arrangement. Such an intangible asset is 

recognised initially at cost determined as the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the 



 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED 

Notes forming part of the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021 

 

construction service delivered and is capitalised when the project is complete in all respects. Port 

concession rights also include certain property, plant and equipment in accordance with Appendix A of Ind 

AS 11 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’. 

 

Port concession rights are amortised on a straight line a basis based on the lower of their useful lives or the 

concession period (presently 30 years). 

 

Any addition to the port concession rights or property, plant and equipment are measured at fair value on 

recognition and amortised over the its useful assets. 

 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of port concession rights are measured as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the 

consolidated statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

 

 

- Other intangible assets 

 

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 

recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated 

impairment losses, if any. 

 

Intangible assets are amortised over their estimated useful life. Software is amortised using the straight-

line method over the estimated useful life of five years or the tenure of the respective software license, 

whichever is lower. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each 

financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates, 

the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate. 

 

c) Impairment of non-financial assets 

 

Impairment charges and reversals are assessed at the level of cash-generating units. A cash-generating 

unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets. 

 

The company assess at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. 

The company conducts an internal review of asset values annually, which is used as a source of 

information to assess for any indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment 

losses. External factors, such as changes in expected future prices, costs and other market factors are also 

monitored to assess for indications of impairment or reversal of previously recognised impairment losses. 

 

If any such indication exists then an impairment review is undertaken and the recoverable amount is 

calculated, as the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and the asset's value in use. 

 

Fair value less costs of disposal is the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly 

transaction between market participants and does not reflect the effects of factors that may be specific to 

the entity and not applicable to entities in general. These cash flows are discounted at an appropriate 

post tax discount rate to arrive at the net present value. 

 

Value in use is determined as the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from 

the continued use of the asset in its present form and its eventual disposal. The cash flows are discounted 
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using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset for which estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Value in use is 

determined by applying assumptions specific to the Company's continued use and cannot take into 

account future development. These assumptions are different to those used in calculating fair value and 

consequently the value in use calculation is likely to give a different result to a fair value calculation. 

 

The carrying amount of the CGU is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount 

of the CGU is determined. 

 

If the recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 

amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss. 

 

Any reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is limited to the extent that the asset's carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss 

had previously been recognised. 

 

d) Financial instruments 

 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or equity instrument of another entity. 

 

(i) Financial Assets - Recognition 

 

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at 

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial 

asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established 

by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 

i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

 

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories: 

 

 Debt instruments at amortised cost 

 

A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual 

cash flows, and 

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 

principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 

effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 

premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is 

included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the 

profit or loss.  
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 Debt instruments at fair value through other Comprehensive income(FVOCI) 

 

A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

 

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling 

the financial assets, and 

 

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.  

 

Debt instruments included within the FVOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting 

date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). However, 

the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or 

loss in the profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 

other comprehensive income is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst 

holding fair value through other comprehensive income debt instrument is reported as interest income 

using the EIR method. 

 

 Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

 

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria 

for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. 

 

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortised 

cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or 

eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The 

Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL. 

 

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 

 Equity Instruments 

  

  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are 

held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 

which Ind AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may 

make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the 

fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification 

is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the 

instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from 

OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the 

cumulative gain or loss within equity. For equity instruments which are classified as FVTPL, all 

subsequent fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.  

 

(ii) Financial Assets - Derecognition 

 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 

expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset in a transaction 

in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. 
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(iii) Impairment of financial assets 

 

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement 

and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets: 

 Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt 

securities, deposits and trade receivables 

 Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVOCI Trade receivables or any 
contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are 
within the scope of Ind AS 115 
 

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade 

receivables.  

 

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. 

Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from 

its initial recognition. 

 

At each reporting date, for recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 

Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial 

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment 

loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, 

credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk 

since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-

month ECL. 

 

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life 

of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default 

events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in accordance with 

the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR.  

 

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the year is recognized as income/ expense in profit or 

loss. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below: 

 

a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral 

part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The Company does not reduce 

impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

b) Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, 

impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as 

‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI.  

 

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on 

the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed 

to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis. 

 

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.e., 

financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/origination. 
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(iv) Financial liabilities – Recognition and Subsequent measurement 

 

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities fair value through profit or 

loss, or as loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an 

effective hedge, as appropriate. 

 

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and 

payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

 

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and borrowings. 

 

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 

 

 Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Borrowings) 

 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 

cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.  

 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or 

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss. 

 

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 

 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 

financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial 

liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near 

term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are 

not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated 

embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective 

hedging instruments. 

 

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. 

 

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as 

such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities 

designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in 

OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may 

transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are 

recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at 

fair value through profit and loss. 

 

(v) Financial liabilities - Derecognition 

 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
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modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 

The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

(vi) Equity instruments 

 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of any entity after 

deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 

received, net of direct issue costs, if any. 

 

(vii) Offsetting of financial instruments 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if 

there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 

settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

(viii)   Income/loss recognition 

 

 Interest income 

 

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The 

effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 

expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the 

effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual 

terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does 

not consider the expected credit losses. 

 

e) Leases 

 

Company as a lessee 

 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-

term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease 

payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

 
i) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 

underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of 

right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 

lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-

use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated 

useful lives of the assets. 

 

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section (p) 

Impairment of non-financial assets. 

 
ii) Lease Liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 

present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 

payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease 
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payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value 

guarantees. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses 

(unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that 

triggers the payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at 

the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. 

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of 

interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is 

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., 

changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease 

payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 
iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of machinery 

and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement 

date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 

exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-

term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the 

lease term. 

 

Company as a lessor 

 

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and 

arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over 

the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 

period in which they are earned. 
 

f) Inventories 

 

Inventories comprise of stores and spares which are valued at the lower of cost determined on  weighted 

average cost basis and the net realisable value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where 

considered necessary. Cost includes all charges in bringing the goods to the point of sale, including octroi 

and other levies, transit insurance and receiving charges. 

Net realizable value is based on estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to 

completion and disposal.  

  

g) Government Grant 

 

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that (i) the 

Company will comply with the conditions attached to them, and (ii) the grant/subsidy will be received. 

 

When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis in the 

consolidated statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related 

costs, which they are intended to compensate. 

 

Where the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal 

amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset and presented within other income. 
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When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair 

value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of 

the benefit of the underlying asset. 

 

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest 

rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a 

government grant. The loan or assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the 

government grant is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan and the 

proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting policy Applicable to financial 

liabilities. 

 

h) Taxation 

 

Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax. 

 

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that 

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax 

payable in respect of previous years. 

 

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences at the reporting 

date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 

purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they 

will be recovered.  

 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year 

when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Tax relating to items recognized outside profit or 

loss is recognized outside profit or loss either in Other Comprehensive Income or Equity. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and is adjusted to the 

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 

asset to be recovered. 

 

i) Employee benefits 

 

(i) Short-term employee benefits 

 

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as 

short-term employee benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and 

compensated absences which are expected to occur in next twelve months. The undiscounted amount of 

short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense 

as the related service is rendered by employees. 

 

(ii) Post-Employment benefits 

 

 Gratuity 

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined 

benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees who 

have completed at least 5 years of service; at retirement, disability or termination of employment 
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being an amount equal to 15 day's salary (based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary) for 

every completed year of service. 

 

Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognized in full for the 

benefit obligation over and above the funds held in the Gratuity Plan. 

 

In respect of defined benefit schemes, the assets are held in separately administered funds. The cost 

of providing benefits under the plans is determined by actuarial valuation separately each year using 

the projected unit credit method by independent qualified actuary as at the year end. 

 

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 

amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized 

immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through 

OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to the Statement of 

Profit and Loss in subsequent periods. 

 

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss: 

 

· Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments 

and non-routine settlements; and 

· Net interest expense or income 

 

 Provident Fund 

The Company offers retirement benefits to its employees, under provident fund scheme which is a 

defined contribution plan. The Company and employees contribute at predetermined rates to the 

fund administered and managed by Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further 

obligation under this scheme beyond its contribution towards provident fund which is recognized as 

an expense in the Statement of profit and loss in the period it is incurred. 

 

 Superannuation 

Certain employees of the Company, eligible for the Superannuation plan. The Company make 

periodic contribution to superannuation plan of Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company 

has no further obligations to the Plan beyond its monthly contributions. The contribution is 

recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee benefits 

 

 Compensated absences 

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-

accumulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by 

actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected 

unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused 

entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating 

compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur. 
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j) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

 

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result 

of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be 

required to settle such an obligation, though the amount or timing is uncertain.  

 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the 

expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the 

liability. Unwinding of the discount is recognized in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 

control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an 

outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely 

rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The 

Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

 

Contingent assets are not recognized but disclosed in the financial statements when an inflow of 

economic benefits is probable. 

 

k) Revenue from contract with customer 

 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are 

transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects 

to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the 

principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency services below, because it typically controls 

the goods or services before transferring them to the customer... As per the Company's current revenue 

recognition practices, transfer of control happens at the same point as transfer of risk and rewards thus 

not effecting the revenue recognition. The amount of revenue recognised reflects the consideration to 

which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from cargo 

handling and storage is recognized in the period to which it relates based on the service performed. 

Revenue is measured based on the rates specified / agreed in the contract with customers. 

 

Contract balances 

 

Contract assets  

A contract asset is initially recognised for revenue earned from installation services because the receipt of 

consideration is conditional on successful completion of the installation. Upon completion of the 

installation and acceptance by the customer, the amount recognised as contract assets is reclassified to 

trade receivables. 

  

Contract assets are subject to impairment assessment. Refer to accounting policies on impairment of 

financial assets in section b) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement.  

Trade receivables 

A receivable is recognised if an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of 

time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial 

assets in section (t) Financial instruments – initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 
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Contract liabilities 

A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a 

customer before the Company transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised 

as revenue when the Company performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or 

services to the customer 

 

The Company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the 

promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a 

consequence, the Company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money. 

 

l) Accounting for foreign currency transactions 

 

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the 

primary economic environment in which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial 

statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. 

 

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are translated into the functional currency 

at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

other currencies are translated into the functional currency at exchange rates prevailing on the reporting 

date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies and measured at historical cost 

or fair value are translated at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates on which such values were 

determined.  

 

All exchange differences are included in profit or loss except any exchange differences on monetary items 

designated as an effective hedging instrument of the currency risk of the designated forecasted sales or 

purchases, which are recognized in the other comprehensive income. 

 

m) Earnings per share 

 

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its equity shares. Basic EPS is 

calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the 

weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by 

adjusting the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 

equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 

n) Current and non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current 

classification. 

An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 It is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal 

operating cycle. 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 It is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; or 
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 It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.  

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 

 

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: 

 It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle; 

 It is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; 

 It is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or 

 The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 

12 months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 

counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classification. 

 

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current only. The operating cycle is the time 

between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The 

Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle. 

 

o) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR). Borrowing costs directly 

relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under construction 

are capitalised and added to the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are 

substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where 

funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual 

borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to 

finance a project, the income generated from such current investments is deducted from the total 

capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project form part of general borrowings, 

the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general 

borrowings of the Company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged 

to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is 

interrupted. 

 

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected 

life of the financial liability or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the amortised cost of a financial 

liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by 

considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call 

and similar options). 

 

 

p) Segment reporting 

 

Identification of segments: 

The Company’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the nature of 

products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers 

different products and serves different markets. The analysis of geographical segments is based on the 

geographical location of the customers. 

 

Segment accounting policies: 



 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED 
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The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for 

preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company as a whole. 

 

 

 

q) Cash and cash equivalents 

 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term money market deposits 

with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and 

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term 

deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of 

the Company’s cash management. 

 

r)  Fair Value Measurement 

 
The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet 
date.   
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
   

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or   

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
     
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 
   
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best 
interest.   
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.   
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising 
the use of unobservable inputs.  
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

 Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
  

 Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.   

 Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement is unobservable.   

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period.   
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on 

the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as 

explained above. 
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s) Share-based payments 
 
The Company does not have any outstanding share based payments. Vedanta Limited (“VL”), the 
immediate holding company offers certain share based incentives under the Long-Term Incentive Plan 
(“LTIP”) to employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries. VL recovers the proportionate 
cost (calculated based on the grant date fair value of the options granted) from the respective group 
companies, which is charged to the statement of profit and loss. 
 

 

        t)  Ind AS 116: Leases 
 

Ind AS 116 standard introduced a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize a 
'right of use asset' (ROU) and a corresponding 'lease liability' for all leases with the exception of short-
term (under 12 months) and low-value leases. Lease costs has been recognised in the income statement 
over the lease term in the form of depreciation on the ROU asset and finance charges representing the 
unwinding of the discount on the lease liability. In contrast, the accounting requirements for lessors 
remain largely unchanged. 
 
The Standard, in addition to increasing the Company’s recognised assets and liabilities, impacted the 
classification and timing of expenses and consequently the classification between cash flow from 
operating activities and cash flow from financing activities. Many commonly used financial ratios and 
performance metrics, using existing definitions, have also impacted including gearing, EBITDA, unit costs 
and operating cash flows. However, implementation of Ind AS 116 didn’t have a material effect on the 
Company’s Financial Statements.  

 
Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to 
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17. Therefore, Ind 
AS 116 does not have any material impact for leases where the Company is the lessor. 

 
     u) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 

 
The appendix addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that 
affects the application of Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of 
Ind AS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with 
uncertain tax treatments. The Appendix specifically addresses the following: 
 
• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately 
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation 
authorities 
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unutilised tax losses, unutilised tax 

credits and tax rates 
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 
 
The Company determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with 
one or more other uncertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resolution of 
the uncertainty. There is no impact of the appendix on Company’s financial statement. 
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3.1 Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies 

 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS which requires management to 

make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and 

liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses 

for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and 

conditions.  

 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected. 

 

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent 

and reasonable. Information about significant area of estimation and critical judgements made in applying 

accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 

statements are as follows:  

 

       Estimates    

 

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

  

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting 

period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. 

 

ii) Impairment Assessment 

In view of the continuing losses despite increased business operations, the Company has reviewed the 

carrying value of its assets and estimated the value in use basis the discounted cash flow projections in 

accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 36.  Based on the said assessment, it has been concluded 

that the value in use is higher than its carrying value as at 31 March 2020 and therefore, no impairment 

was required to be recorded in these financial statements. The Company has used key inputs centered 

around the forecasted revenue, operating and fixed costs, finance costs weightage average cost of 

capital etc.  
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Critical judgments  

 

     Contingencies  
 

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other 

claims against the Company. Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be 

reliably quantified or is uncertain, the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood 

of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in 

the financial statements. 

 

While considering the possible, probable and remote analysis of taxation, legal and other claims, there 

is always a certain degree of judgement involved pertaining to the application of the legislation which in 

certain cases is supported by views of tax experts and/or earlier precedents in similar matters. Although 

there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not 

expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the Company’s financial position or profitability. 

 

3.2 Application of new standards and amendments 
 

The Company has adopted, with effect from April 01, 2020, the following new and revised standards and 
interpretations. Their adoption has not had any significant impact on the amounts reported in the 
financial statements.  
 
1. Amendments to Ind AS 103 regarding definition of a Business 
2. Amendments to Ind AS 107 and 109 regarding Interest Rate Benchmark Reform  
3. Amendments to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 regarding definition of Material 
4. Amendments to Ind AS 116 regarding COVID-19 related rent concessions 
 

 



4A

(INR Crores)

Particulars Land - freehold
Furniture and 

fixtures
Office equipment Total

GROSS BLOCK

AT 1 APRIL 2019                       0.07                     0.98                        3.04                   4.10 

Additions                           -                       0.02                        0.52                   0.54 

Deletions                           -                           -                              -                         -   

AT 31 MARCH 2020                       0.07                     1.00                        3.57                   4.64 

Additions                           -                           -                          0.35                   0.35 

Deletions                           -                           -                              -                         -   

AT 31 MARCH 2021                       0.07                     1.00                        3.92                   4.99 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AT 1 APRIL 2019                           -                       0.64                        2.34                   2.98 

Depreciation for the year                           -                       0.09                        0.16                   0.25 

Depreciation on Deletions                           -   -                      -                                              -   

AT 31 MARCH 2020                           -                       0.73                        2.50                   3.22 

Depreciation for the year                           -                       0.09                        0.31                   0.40 

Depreciation on Deletions                           -                           -   -                                              -   

AT 31 MARCH 2021                           -                       0.81                        2.81                   3.63 

NET BOOK VALUE

AT 31 MARCH 2020                       0.07                     0.27                        1.07                   1.41 

AT 31 MARCH 2021                       0.07                     0.18                        1.11                   1.36 

4B Intangible Assets

(INR Crores)

Particulars

Port Concession 

Rights          (Refer 

note 33)

Computer    Soft 

ware
Total

GROSS BLOCK

AT 1 APRIL 2019                    676.11                     0.58                     676.68 

Additions                       5.75                     0.01                        5.77 

Deletions                       0.72                         -                          0.72 

AT 31 MARCH 2020                   681.14                     0.59                    681.73 

Additions                       1.37                         -                          1.37 

Deletions                           -                           -                              -   

AT 31 MARCH 2021                   682.51                     0.59                    683.10 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

AT 1 APRIL 2019                    145.25                     0.58                     145.83 

Depreciation for the year                     24.84                     0.00                      24.84 

Depreciation on Deletions                       0.15                         -                          0.15 

AT 31 MARCH 2020                   169.94                     0.58                    170.52 

Depreciation for the year                     24.99                     0.00                      25.00 

Depreciation on Deletions                           -                           -                              -   

AT 31 MARCH 2021                   194.93                     0.59                    195.51 

NET BOOK VALUE

AT 31 MARCH 2020                    511.20                     0.01                     511.22 

AT 31 MARCH 2021                   487.58                     0.01                    487.59 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2021

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT



5 Non Current financial assets  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 
Unsecured, considered good
Trade receivable (Also refer note (i) below) -                              1.66                    

Unsecured, considered Doubtful
Trade receivable- Credit Impaired                              0.09                     0.09 
Less: Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables                            (0.09)                    (0.09)

-                                1.66                     

i)

6 Other financial assets  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 

Non current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security deposits 3.12                            3.12                    

3.12                              3.12                     

Current
(Unsecured, considered good)

(a) Security Deposits 0.07                            0.02                    

(b) Recoverable from Related Parties (refer Note 28) 3.45                            13.62                  
(c) Interest accrued on deposits measured at amortised cost 0.27                            0.35                    

(d) Contract Assets 1.38                            -                     
5.17                              13.99                   

7 Inventories  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 

2.22                            2.30                    

(For method of valuation of inventories  refer note-3(f))

8 Current Investments  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

 Investments in mutual funds carried at Fair value through P&L 9.87                            49.57                  

Aggregate amount of quoted Investment in Mutual fund -                                -                      

Aggregate amount of unquoted Investment in Mutual fund 9.87                            49.57                  

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Stores and spares (Refer note)                                                                                                                                                                                       

Non current receivables aggregating to Rs.1.66 Crores has been received on 6th January 2021 from SAIL

Note:- The company recognised Non moving items as at March 31, 2021 of Rs.0.09 

Crores (March 31, 2020 of Rs.0.01 Crores)



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

9 Trade receivables  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Unsecured, considered good (Refer Notes below) 4.18                            17.20                  
Provision for doubtful Trade Receivables (0.09) -                     

                               4.10                     17.20 
Notes: 

(i) Trade receivables from a related party                              0.24                     6.16 

ii)

iii)

10 Cash and cash equivalents  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Balances with banks in current accounts 1.85                            3.06                    

                               1.85                       3.06 

11 Other  Assets As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Non Current

(a) Balance with government authorities (Refer note 16) -                              2.40                    

                                   -                         2.40 

Current
(a) Advance to suppliers 0.39                            0.42                    
(b) Prepaid expenses 0.45                            0.31                    
(c) Balance with government authorities 2.90                            5.25                    
(d) Export Incentive receivable (Refer below note) 2.29                            6.90                    

                               6.03                     12.87 

Average credit period offered by the Company to customers is 30 days. In case credit period is to be extended over 30 days to any

customer, prior approval from Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer shall be obtained. In case payment is not received even

after 90 days, Company may suspend the operations on behalf of such client.

(Refer note  28)

The total contract assets as at March 31, 2021; March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 were Rs. 1.38 Crores, Rs. Nil, and Rs.0.69 Crores

respectively.

(unsecured, considered good)

Note:- Service export incentive scheme for the year 2019-20 was approved by DGFT on which notification related to rate still 

to be finalized by DGFT.Basis the expert opinion company is confident that rate will be notified in due course and the amount 

will be recovered, hence no provision is required in these financial statements.



12 Share capital

 Number of 

shares 

 Amount in 

Crores 

 Number of 

shares 

 Amount in 

Crores 

50,000,000         50.00              50,000,000         50.00               

47,108,000         47.11              32,108,000         32.11               

47,108,000      47.11             32,108,000      32.11             

(i)

(ii)

Particulars

 Number of 

shares held 

% of Holding  Number of 

shares held 

% of Holding 

Vedanta Limited, holding Company          47,108,000 100%          32,108,000 100%

(iii)

 Number of 

shares held 

% of Holding  Number of 

shares held 

% of Holding 

         47,108,000 100% 32,108,000         100%

(iv)

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled to

one vote per share and dividend as and when declared by the company. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject

to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend which is paid as and

when declared by Board of Directors. In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive

remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares :

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(a) Vedanta Limited (including nominee)

 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

Name of Shareholder 

Details of shares held by the holding Company (including nominee) :

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

There has been movement in the equity share capital for the year ended March 31, 2021. During the year Compulsorily Convertible 

Debentures has been converted to equity on the basis of fair value derived as per the discounted cash flow method valuation 

report. Company has issued 1.50 Crore Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 90/- per share to Vedanta Limited. 

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each with voting rights

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each with voting rights

Authorised 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

 As at 

 March 31, 2021 
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13 Non current borrowings As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Secured (measured at amortised cost)

(a) Redeemable non convertible debentures ('NCD')

[refer note (i)]

-                              425.00                

Unsecured (measured at amortised cost)

(a) -                              0.12                    

Financial liabilities - Borrowings                                    -                     425.12 

Less: Current maturities of long term borrowings

          (Refer note 16(a))

                                -                  (425.12)

                                   -                             -   

Total secured borrowings                                    -                     425.00 
Total unsecured borrowings                                    -                         0.12 

Movement in borrowings during the year is provided below. (INR Crores)

Particulars Borrowings Due 

with in one year

Borrowings Due after 

one year
Total

Opening balance at April 1, 2019 0.12                     425.13                         425.25                
Cash flow -                       -                              -                     
Other non cash changes 425.00                  (425.13)                       (0.13)                   
As at April 1, 2020 425.12                  -                                425.12                
Proceeds from Inter company loan  425.00                  -                              425.00                
Re payment of Non Convertible Debenture (425.00)                -                              (425.00)               
Current Maturity regrouped to other Financial liabilty -                       -                              -                     
Other non cash changes (0.12)                    -                              (0.12)                   
As at March 31, 2021 425.00                  -                                425.00                

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

13A Current financial liabilities - Borrowings As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(a) Loan from related party-(Refer note 28 and below 

note )

Vedanta Limited 

425.00                          -                      

                           425.00                           -   

Note:- The company has taken Inter Corporate loan from its parent Company Vedanta Limited amounting to Rs. 425 Crores 

(Interest rate of 10.5% p.a) for the period of one year, this was meant for repayment of Non-Convertible debentures ('NCD') 

which were due for repayment on September 30, 2020.

Interest shall be due and payable at the end of 12 months from the date of receiving of the Loan amount.

In May 2017, the Company issued NCDs of Rs.425 crore at an interest rate of 8.25%. These NCDs are secured by way of first pari-

passu charge on the specific movable and/or immovable property, plant and equipment & Port Concession Rights (Intangible

assets), as may be identified and notified by the Issuer to the Security Trustee from time to time, with minimum asset coverage of

1 time of the aggregate face value of debentures outstanding at any point of time. The NCDs are re-paid in September 2020. The

charge from asset was released and No due certificate was provided by debenture trustee.

Liability component of compound financial instruments represent the amortised cost of amounts payable on 1,500,000(Nos) 0.1%

Unsecured Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (“CCDs”)’ of Rs. 1,000 each issued by the Company to Vedanta Limited (the

“Subscriber”).The CCDs were allotted to the Subscriber on March 28, 2011 at Rs. 650 called up per CCD and the balance Rs. 350

was called upon during the year ending March 31, 2012. At the end of the 7th year from the date of allotment each of the CCDs

shall be compulsorily convertible into equity shares of the Company at Rs. 11.10 each i.e. each CCD shall be converted into 90

equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 1.10 per share.During FY17-18 ,The tenure of CCD's has been extended by a

period of 2 years 10 months . The CCD's was due for conversion on January 28, 2021. The said conversion was calculated basis the

valuation report dated December 10, 2020. As per the said report, the Equity Shares of the Company are valued at Rs. 100/- per

share (i.e face value of Rs. 10/- each and premium of Rs.90/- per share) and accordingly, each CCD is convertible into 10 (Ten)

Equity Shares. The same is also approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 19th January, 2021.The revised

conversion price has been approved by the Shareholders of the Company at the Extra-ordinary General Meeting held on January

21, 2021 followed by the approval of Committee of Directors of Vedanta Limited dated January 27, 2021.Accordingly, the Company

alloted 1,50,00,000 (One Crore and Fifty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 90/- per share to Vedanta

Limited. 

Other non cash changes comprises of  amortization of borrowing cost and reclassification between borrowings due with in one 

year and borrowings due after one year.

Total non-current financial liabilities - Borrowings (Net)

Liability component of compound financial instruments (see note (ii) below)
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14  Other  liabilities As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Non Current
(a) Deferred government grant [refer note (ii) below]                              25.83                     27.23 

Current
(a) Statutory liabilities 1.01                            4.61                    
(b) Advance from customers [refer note (i) below] 3.58                            2.63                    
(c) Deferred government grant [refer note (ii) below] 1.40                            1.40                    

                               5.99                       8.64 

Notes-
(i)

(ii)

15 Current financial liabilities-Trade payables As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

i) (a) Total Outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises

and Small Enterprises(refer note 1 below)

1.05                            0.88                    

(b) Total Outstanding dues of Creditors other

than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises

26.08                          50.97                  

ii) Trade payables to related parties (refer note - 28) 0.75                            5.35                    

                             27.88                     57.20 

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled in 30 days terms. 

Note-1 Disclosures as required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006:

As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

1.05                            0.88                    

                                   -                             -   

                                   -                             -   

                                   -                             -   

                                   -                             -   

                                   -                             -   

Particulars

(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the 

accounting year

(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of 

the accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment 

made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

(iv)The amount of interest due and payable for the year

The Company has acquired certain plant and machinery on a concessional rate of duty as against which it has undertaken to make

exports. The government grant is released to the statement of profit and loss on a systematic basis over a period of time.

Advance from customers are contract liabilities. The opening balance as at the start of the year was Rs.2.63 Crores (March 31, 

2020 was Rs.2.66 Crores ) The advance payment will be settled by providing port operation services as per terms of respective 

agreement. As these are contracts that the company expects and has ability, to fulfill through delivery of non financial items, these 

are recognised as advance from customers and will be released to statement of profit and loss account as respective service 

delivered under the agreement.The portion of the advance that is expected to be settled within the next 12 months has been 

classified as a current liability.

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 

year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the 

accounting year



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

16 Other financial liabilities As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Non Current
(a) Royalty (payable to Vishakhapatnam Port Trust) (refer below note)                                    -                       14.38 

Current
(a) Current maturities of long term borrowings (refer note below) -                              425.12                
(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings -                              30.74                  
(c) Payables for capital goods -                              -                     
(d) Due to related parties (refer note - 28) 20.94                          -                     
(e) Security deposit from vendors 1.35                            1.53                    
(f) Royalty (payable to Vishakhapatnam Port Trust)-(refer below note) 2.01                            19.48                  

(g) Liability for Unpaid Wages 0.47                            1.67                    

(h) Others 0.01                            -                     

                             24.77                   478.55 
Note:
Current maturities of long term borrowings comprises of:
(Also refer note 13)

- Liability component of compound financial 

instruments (Unsecured)

-                                                  0.12 

- Non convertible debenture (Secured)                                 -                    425.00 

                                   -                     425.12 

17 Provisions As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Non Current
(a) Provision for employee benefits (net)

- Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 0.53                              0.64                     

Current

(a) Provision for employee benefits (net)
- Provision for compensated absences 0.16                              0.38                     

Note:- As per concession agreement, storage royalty to be paid on notional basis in place of actual storage charges collected 

from port users and based on concession agreement Company had created  the liability amounting to Rs.31.41 Crores from 

Aug-2016 to Sep-2018. During the year VPT agreed to change the effective date of rationalization from 21st Jan-2019  to 11th 

Jul-2018, based on revised effective date the liability of storage royalty is reduced by Rs. 7.13 Crores. 

Interest on storage Royalty also reduced by Rs.4.85 crores as the basic liability itself reduced for the period from 11th Jul 

2018 to 21st Jan 2019. Management is confident that outstanding liability and interest till 2021 is sufficient to meet its 

obligation.



18 Revenue from operations  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 

(a) Revenue from contract with customers (Sale of services)
- Income from port operations 108.33                     146.56                   

(b) Other operating revenues
- Export incentives -                          2.22                      
- Scrap sales 0.40                        22.35                     

108.73                     171.14                   

19 Other income  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(a) Net gain on redemption/sale/Fair value on financial assets carried at FVTPL 0.92                        1.76                      
(b) Interest income from financial assets measured at amortised costs 0.38                        0.12                      
(c) Liquidation damages 0.35                        0.18                      
(d) Amortization of deferred revenue arising from government grant (refer note 14) 1.40                        1.40                      
(e) Miscellaneous income 0.07                        0.28                      

3.12                         3.74                       

20 Employee benefits expense As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(a) Salaries and Wages (refer note 27) 1.54                        2.15                      
(b) Share based payment to employees (refer note 26) 0.07                        0.65                      
(c) Contributions to provident and other funds (refer note 27) 0.14                        0.72                      
(d) Staff welfare expenses 0.34                        0.51                      

2.09                         4.03                       

21 Finance Cost  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

 (INR Crores)  (INR Crores) 

(a) Interest expense on financial liabilities at amortised cost (refer note 16) 37.77                      41.09                     
(b) Other borrowing costs 0.75                        1.31                      

38.52                       42.40                     

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

Revenue from Port operations are recorded over a period of time. This includes Rs.2.63 Crores (Previous year: Rs.2.66 Crores) for which

contract liabilities existed at the beginning of the year. The said revenue from contract with customers is after reducing discounts of Rs.

0.68 Crores (Previous year: Rs.0.41 Crores).The Company has a single stream of revenue and hence there is no additional information

required with respect to disaggregation of revenue.



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

22 Other Expenses As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(a) Consumption of stores and spare parts 2.26                        3.11                      
(b) Repairs and maintenance 0.85                        0.84                      
(c) Power and fuel 8.73                        11.20                     
(d) Material handling expenses (refer note-(c) below) 5.73                        6.00                      
(e) Demmurage charges 0.82                        2.28                      
(f) Port operation and maintenance expenses 8.78                        11.03                     
(g) License fees for land 4.17                        4.24                      
(h) Legal and professional 0.81                        1.04                      
(i) Payment to auditors (refer note-(a) below) 0.11                        0.11                      
(j) Security expenses 0.65                        0.54                      
(k) Insurance 0.73                        0.62                      
(l) Travelling and conveyance 0.32                        0.45                      
(m) Rates and taxes 0.09                        0.21                      
(n) Directors sitting fees 0.20                        0.04                      
(o) Loss on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment -                          0.57                      
(p) Miscellaneous expenses 1.32                        1.70                      

35.57                       43.99                     

Note:

(a) Payment to auditors 

As Auditors
- Audit fee 0.05                        0.05                      
- Limited review 0.04                        0.04                      
In other capacity -                        
- Other services (Certification services) 0.02                        0.02                      
- Reimbursement of expenses 0.01                        0.01                      

0.11                         0.11                       

(b)

(c)

23 Exceptional items As at 

 March 31, 2021

As at 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Port operation expenses -                          28.72                     

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company was not required to spend any amounts on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities. The total actual expenditure on 

CSR acvtivities is also nil.

During the year, provision made for Rs.3.44 Crores towards private siding staff charges for the period November-2018 to till date. 

Company has represented to VPT for waiver of the charges.



24
Units  As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (BEPS)
a. Net Profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for BEPS INR Crores                     (8.58)                   31.81 
b. Number of equity shares for BEPS No. of shares 47,108,000 32,108,000
c. Basic earning/(loss) per share Rupees (1.82)                   9.91                    

Diluted earnings/ (loss) per share (DEPS)
a. Diluted earning/(loss) per share (Refer Notes below) Rupees (1.82)                   1.90                    

Notes:

1

2 Net profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for BEPS INR Crores (8.58)                   31.81                  
Add: Interest on compulsory convertible debentures INR Crores 0.01                     0.02                    

INR Crores (8.57)                   31.83                  

3 Number of equity shares for BEPS No. of shares 47,108,000 32,108,000
Add: Effect of compulsory convertible debentures No. of shares -                      135,000,000        
Number of equity shares for DEPS No. of shares 47,108,000          167,108,000

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

During the year Compulsorily Convertible Debentures has been converted to equity on the basis of valuation report. Accordingly Company

has issued 1.50 Crore Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium of Rs. 90/- per share to Vedanta Limited the basic earnings per share and

the diluted earnings per share is same for the  purpose of computing diluted EPS.

Net profit/ (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders for DEPS

Earnings per share (EPS):                                                                               
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 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

i 5.00                    5.00                    

ii 0.49                    0.68                    

Contingent liability:

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Contingent liabilities, Commitments and others:

The Company has received an order from the commissioner of Central

Excise Customs & Service tax dated March 20,2017 for payment of service

tax liability on account of incorrect availment of service tax credit on

impugned capital goods and taxability of Berth hire charges in the hands of

the Company during year 2013-14.

Management considers these demands as not tenable against the company

and therefore no provision for tax contingencies has been considered

necessary. 

The company has received a Show Cause Notice (SCN) from Commercial

Tax Officer (CTO), Gajuwaka on November 02, 2017 asking for explanation

for TDS deducted on rates different from those prescribed in the notification

dated September 14, 2011 on Works Contract payment made between

period November 14, 2011 to March 31,2015. The company had deducted

the TDS at different rates ranging from 2.80% to 3.37% as against the

statutory rate of 3.50%, thus resulting in lower deduction of TDS of Rs.

0.54 Crores. As assessed by CTO the liability is reduced from Rs.0.54

Crores to Rs.0.40 Crores as per the revised demand notice by CTO dated

25th Nov 2020. Management has filed appeal with tribunal against the CTO

demand notice and basis assessment of the internal legal counsel believes

that probability of the liability devolving on the Company is low and

accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement in this

regard. This disclosed amount includes Penalty amount of communication

received in 2020-21.



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

iii) Export Obligation :                                                

iv) Capital Commitment :                                                

26 Share based compensation plans

Other Commitments :

The company has export obligation of Rs. 307.54 Crores (March 31,2020 Rs. 307.54 Crores) on account of

concessional rates of import duties paid on capital goods under the Export Promotion Capital Goods scheme enacted by

the Government of India which is to be fulfilled over a period of 6 - 8 years from the date of purchase. If the company

is unable to meet these obligations, it would be liable for payment of duty of Rs. 38.51 Crores (March 31, 2020 Rs.

38.51 Crores) plus interest which have not been provided for as the Company believes it has a resonable possibility of

meeting these obligations.The company has pending export obligations amounting to Rs. 0.71 Crores as at March 31

,2021. The Company has given bonds of Rs. 38.03 Crores (March 31, 2020: Rs. 38.03 Crores ) to custom authorities

against these export obligations and company had applied further two years.

The Company offered equity based and cash based option plans to its employees, officers and directors through the

Company's stock option plan introduced in 2016, Cairn India's stock option plan now administered by the Company

pursuant to merger with the Company and Vedanta Resources Limited (earlier known as Vedanta Resources Plc) plans

[Vedanta Resources Long-Term Incentive Plan ("LTIP"), Employee Share Ownership Plan ("ESOP"), Performance Share

Plan (“PSP”) and Deferred Share Bonus Plan ("DSBP")] collectively referred as 'VRL ESOP' scheme.

Currently, the Company introduced an Employee Stock Option Scheme 2016 (“ESOS”), which was approved by the

Vedanta Limited shareholders to provide equity settled incentive to all employees of the Company including subsidiary

companies. The ESOS scheme includes tenure based, business performance based, sustained individual performance

based and market performance based stock options. The maximum value of options that can be awarded to members

of the wider management group is calculated by reference to the grade average cost-to-company ("CTC") and individual

grade of the employee. The performance conditions attached to the option is measured by comparing Company’s

performance in terms of Total Shareholder Return ("TSR") over the performance period with the performance of two

group of comparator companies (i.e. Indian and global comparator companies) defined in the scheme. The extent to

which an option vests will depend on the Company's TSR rank against a group or groups of peer companies at the end

of the performance period and as moderated by the Remuneration Committee.

Options granted during the year ended March 31, 2021 includes business performance based, sustained individual

performance based and market performance based stock options. Business performances will be measured using

Volume, Cost, Net Sales Realisation, EBITDA or a combination of these for the respective business/ SBU entities.

Amount recovered by the Parent and recognized by the company  in the statement of profit and loss account for the 

year ended Crores 31, 2021 was Rs 0.07 Crores (Year ended March 31, 2020 was Rs 0.65 Crores). The Company 

considers these amounts as not material and accordingly has not provided further disclosures.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company has Capital commitment amounting to Rs.0.97 Crores (March 31,2020 Rs.0.63 Crores) which are yet to 

be executed and hence not provided for.



27 Employee benefits 

(i) Defined contribution plans

(ii) Defined benefit plans

Gratuity plan

- Principal actuarial assumptions

Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

Discount Rate 6.90% 6.80%
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees 8.0% 10%
Expected return on plan asset 8.65% 8.65%
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
In Service Mortality IALM (2012-14) IALM (2012-14)

Withdrawal rates for:-
Up to 30 years 23% 3%
From 31 to 44 years 23% 2%
Above 44 years 23% 1%

- Amount of obligation recognised in the balance sheet consists of:

Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Present value of defined benefit obligations 0.98                         1.05                     
Fair value of plan assets (0.45)                        (0.41)                   

0.53                        0.64                   

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Based on actuarial valuations conducted as at year end, a provision is recognised in full for the benefit obligation over and above the funds held in

the Gratuity Plan. 

Principal actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

In accordance with the The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees are entitled to receive benefits under the

Provident Fund Scheme. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a predetermined rate (12% for fiscal year

2021 and 2020) of an employee’s basic salary. All employees have an option to make additional voluntary contributions. These contributions are

made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India (GOI). The Company has no further obligations under the fund managed by

the GOI beyond its monthly contributions which are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period they are incurred. 

Central provident fund 

Superannuation

Superannuation, another pension scheme applicable in India, is applicable only to senior executives. The Company holds a policy with Life Insurance

Corporation of India (“LIC”), to which the Company contributes a fixed amount relating to superannuation and the pension annuity is met by LIC as

required, taking into consideration the contributions made. The Company has no further obligations under the scheme beyond its monthly

contributions which are charged to the  statement of profit and loss in the period they are incurred.

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is

required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company has recognised Rs.0.17 Crores (Previous year

Rs. 0.20 Crores) for Provident Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The Company has recognised Rs. 0.05 Crores (Previous year Rs.0.17 Crores) for Superannuation Fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and

Loss.

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) for employees who

have completed 5 years of service. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or termination of

employment being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the Company.The

gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contribution to recognized funds in India.



27 Employee benefits 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Cont..
-

Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Current service cost 0.06                         0.09                     
Interest expenses on plan liabilities 0.07                         0.05                     
Expected return on plan assets (0.03)                        (0.03)                   

0.10                        0.12                   

-

Remeasurement of net defined benefit obligation
Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

                        (0.16)                      0.12 

                          0.17                      0.16 
                        (0.13)                     (0.00)

Return on Plan asset excluding net interest                           0.00                      0.00 
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in other comprehensive income (0.12)                      0.29                   

 
-

Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Balance at start of the year 1.05                         0.62                     
Current service cost 0.06                         0.09                     
Interest cost 0.07                         0.05                     
Benefits paid (0.09)                        -                      
Actuarial Gain on arising from Change in Demographic Assumption                         (0.13) (0.00)                   

                        (0.16) 0.12                     

                          0.17 0.16                     
Balance at end of year 0.98                        1.05                   

-

Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)
Balance at start of the year 0.41                         0.33                     
Contribution received 0.10                         0.06                     
Interest income 0.03                         0.03                     
Charges (0.01)                        (0.01)                   
Benefits paid (0.09)                        -                      
Balance at the end of year 0.45                        0.41                   

% allocation of plan assets
Assets by category Year ended 

 March 31, 2021

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020

Life insurance corporation of india 100% 100%

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation 3.79                         17.79                   

- Sensitivity analysis

Actuarial loss/(gain) arising from changes in  financial assumption

Actuarial loss arising from changes in  experience adjustment

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in  financial assumption

Amounts recognised in the Other Comprehensive Income in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:

The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligation is as follows:

Actuarial loss arising from changes in  experience adjustment

Movement  in the fair value of plan assets is as follows:

Actuarial gain arising from changes in  demogrophic adjustment

In absence of detailed information regarding plan assets which is funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India, the composition of each major

category of plan assets and the percentage or amount for each major category to the fair value of total plan assets has not been disclosed.

Below is the sensitivity analysis determined for significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of defined benefit obligations and based on

reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant.

The actuarial return on plan assets was Rs. 0.03 Crores for the year ended March 31,2021 and  Rs.0.03 Crores for year ended March 31,2020.

The company expects to contribute Rs. 0.09 Crores to the funded defined benefit plan in fiscal year 2022 (PY of Rs.0.14 Crores).

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plan are as follows:



27 Employee benefits 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Cont.. Year ended 

 March 31, 2021' 

(INR Crores)

Year ended 

 March 31, 2020' 

(INR Crores)

Discount rate
PVO at the end of period (Discount rate - 0.5% ) 0.96                         1.12                     
PVO at the end of period (Discount rate - 0.25% ) 0.95                         1.09                     
PVO at the end of period  Discount rate 0.98                         1.05                     
PVO at the end of period (Discount rate + 0.25% ) 0.98                         1.02                     
PVO at the end of period (Discount rate  + 0.5% ) 0.99                         0.99                     

Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees
PVO at the end of period (Salary Increase   - 0.5% ) 0.96                         1.02                     
PVO at the end of period  Salary increase 0.98                         1.05                     
PVO at the end of period (Salary Increase   + 0.5% ) 0.99                         1.08                     

Return of planned assets
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate -0.5% 0.03                         0.41                     
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate -0.25% 0.03                         0.41                     
Fair value of plan assets - Base rate 0.03                         0.41                     
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate +0.25% 0.03                         0.41                     
Fair value of plan assets -Expected rate +0.5% 0.03                         0.41                     

Risk analysis

Investment risk

Interest risk

Longevity risk/ Life expectancy

Salary growth risk

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

INR Crores               

March 31, 2021

                          0.22 

                          0.18 

                          0.21 

                          0.09 

                          0.07 

                          0.05 

                          0.17 

5 to 6 Year

4 to 5 Year

3 to 4 Year

2 to 3 Year

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during

and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. An increase in the salary of

the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

The above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur

in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit

method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined obligation liability recognized in the balance

sheet.

Company is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined benefits plans and management

estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). Company does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to

LIC.

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to Government of India bonds . If

the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability.

1 to 2 Year

0 to 1 Year

Year

6 Year onwards



28 Related party transactions

(a) List of related parties and relationships

(i) Ultimate holding company

Volcan Investments Limited

(ii) Holding company:

Vedanta Limited 

(iii) Fellow subsidiaries

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited

- Talwandi Sabo Private Limited

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited

- Hindustan Zinc Limited

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited)

(iv) Key Managerial Personnel

- Mr. Sauvick Mazumdar                 : Other Non-Executive Director (w.e.f January 19, 2021)

- Mr. Anup Agarwal                       : Other Non-Executive Director (up to close of business hours on January 19, 2021)

- Ms. Pooja Yadava                       : Other Non-Executive Director (up to close of business hours on January 12, 2021)

- Mr. Vijay Chhiber                        : Other Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. September 1, 2020)

- Mr.Prasun Kumar Mukherjee          : Other Non-Executive Director (w.e.f. September 1, 2020)

- Mr. R.Kannan                             : Independent Director (up to close of business hours on Aug 31, 2020)

- Mr. AR.Narayana Swamy              : Independent Director (up to close of business hours on Aug 31, 2020)

- Mr. Chikkala Sateesh Kumar          : Whole-time Director & Dy.Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f. October 1, 2020)

- Mr. Srikanth Gudivada                 : Chief Financial Officer(up to close of business hours on Sep 30, 2020)

- Mr. Vinay Chaurasia                    : Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. October 1, 2020)

- Mr. Kumar Ankit                         : Company Secretary (up to close of business hours on February 4, 2021)

(b)

Year ended Year ended

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Transactions during the year

(i) Sale of Scrap -                           -                                

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) -                           17.89                             

-                                

(ii)  Scripts Transferred -                                

- Vedanta Limited 4.35                         1.10                              

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) 0.03                         0.76                              

(iii) Income from port operations *

- Vedanta Limited 9.46                         22.51                             

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited -                           9.89                              

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited 2.89                         3.99                              

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) 3.67                         12.67                             
-                                

(iv) -                                

- Vedanta Limited (Refer Note 26) 0.07                         0.73                              

(v)

- Vedanta Limited 0.15                         0.34                              

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited 3.36                         3.08                              

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) 0.05                         -                                

- Fujairah Gold 0.00                         -                                

- Hindustan Zinc Limited -                           0.03                              

- Talwandi Sabo Private Limited 0.07                         -                                

(vi)

- Interest on debentures measured at amortised cost 22.63                        0.02                              

- Other borrowing costs 0.66                         1.20                              

(vii) Reimbursement of expenses net*

- Vedanta Limited 0.90                         0.18                              

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited 0.05                         -                                

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited -                           10.40                             

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) -                           1.67                              

- Hindustan Zinc Limited 0.01                         

(viii) Purchase of Assets & Purchases & other services

- Sesa Resources Limited -                           0.01                              

- Vedanta Limited 0.02                         0.00                              

- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited) 0.17                         -                                

(ix) Short term borrowing taken from

- Vedanta Limited 425.00                      -                                

Finance cost charged by Vedanta Limited *

Details of related party transactions (Excluding taxes, appliable if any) and balances outstanding as at year end are as stated below. 

Employee benefit expenses charged by*

Employee benefit & Admin expenses charged to *

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(x) Key Management Personnel *
- Sitting fees paid 0.20                         0.04                              

- Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (refer note below) 0.80                         1.98                              

Note: Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel Year ended Year ended

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Short-term employee benefits 0.74                         1.63                              

Post employment benefits 0.06                         0.25                              

Share based payments -                           0.10                              

Total 0.80                        1.98                             

* Details of related party transactions are reported by excluding taxes, if any 

Outstanding balances at year end

As at As at

 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

(i) Short term borrowing

- Vedanta Limited 425.00                                   -   

(ii) Liability component of compound financial instruments

                             -                                  0.12 

(iii) Corporate Guarantee issued on Company's behalf by

                        56.25                            521.27 

(iv) Trade Payables

- Vedanta Limited                           0.75                                5.35 

(v) Other financial liabilities

- Vedanta Limited                         20.92                                   -   
- Hindustan Zinc Ltd                           0.01                                   -   

(vi) Trade receivables

- Vedanta Limited                           0.23                                0.49 
- Maritime Ventures Private Limited                              -                                  5.23 

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited                              -                                  0.03 
- ESL Steel Limited (Formerly known as Electrosteel Steels Limited)                           0.00                                0.42 

(vii) Recoverable from Fellow Subsidiary

- Maritime Ventures Private Limited                           0.86                              13.53 
- Vedanta Limited                           2.59                                   -   

(viii) Advance recoverable

- Vedanta Limited                           0.01                                0.13 

(ix) Advance from customer

- Bharat Aluminium Company Limited                           0.03                                   -   
- Vedanta Limited                           0.03                                   -   

- Vedanta Limited - Liability component of compound financial 

instruments (See note 13).

- Vedanta Limited 
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VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

29 Tax expense/(Benefit)

Year ended

 March 31, 2021

Year ended

 March 31, 2020
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Current Tax -                           (0.44)                             

Deferred tax liability arising on temporary differences (15.03)                      (55.69)                           

(15.03)                     (56.13)                          

Year ended

 March 31, 2021

Year ended

 March 31, 2020
(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Net (Loss) before tax (23.61)                      (24.32)                           

Statutory tax rate 29.12% 29.12%

Tax at statutory income tax rate (6.87)                        (7.08)                             

Deferred tax on accelerated depreciation under income tax -                           -                                

Tax Impact on Unabsorbed Depreciation for Previous years - Deferred tax asset created
(9.87)                        (37.13)                           

-                           (12.92)                           

Tax items reversing under tax holiday period -                           1.36                              

Deferred tax on Fair valuation of Mutual Fund under income tax (0.16)                        -                                

Deferred tax on Employee benifits under income tax on provisions 0.10                         (0.15)                             

Tax losses and depreciation reversing during tax holiday period -                           -                                

Credit in respect to deferred tax for prior year 1.78                         -                                

Others -                           (0.21)                             

Tax charge /(Credit) for the year (15.03)                     (56.13)                          

Sectoral Benefit -  Port Operations

To encourage the establishment of infrastructure, ports have been offered income tax exemptions of upto 100% of profits and gains for any ten

consecutive years within the 15 year period following commencement of operations subject to certain conditions. However,such undertakings would

continue to be subject to MAT provisions.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profits before tax at the statutory income tax rate to recognised income tax expense

for the year indicated are as follows:

The major components of income tax expense/(Benefit) for the year ended March 31, 2021 are indicated below:

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

All transactions with related parties are made in ordinary course of business. There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related

party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31 2021, the company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts

owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the

market in which the related party operates.

One time impact on Change in tax rate from 34.94% to 29.12% - 

Refer Note 30



30 Income tax

Deferred tax liabilities/ (assets)

As at  March 31, 2021 (INR Crores)

Opening 

 April 01, 2020

Charged / 

(credited) to 

Statement of profit 

or loss

Charged/ 

(credited) to OCI

Total as at 

 March 31, 2021

Property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets

69.60               1.41                       -                       71.01                    

Losses/Unabasorbed Depriciation 

available for offsetting against future 

taxable income

(46.28)             (18.15)                   -                       (64.43)                  

Fair valuation on mutual fund 0.15                 (0.16)                     -                       (0.01)                    

Employee benefit (0.30)               0.10                       -                       (0.20)                    

Other Temporary Differences - 

Provisions

(1.78)               1.78                       -                       

21.41               (15.03)                   -                       6.38                     

As at  March 31, 2020 (INR Crores)

Opening 

 April 01, 2019

Charged / 

(credited) to 

Statement of profit 

or loss

Charged/ 

(credited) to OCI

Total as at 

 March 31, 2020

Property, plant and equipment and 

intangible assets

77.52               (7.92)                     -                       69.60                    

Losses/Unabasorbed Depriciation 

available for offsetting against future 

taxable income

-                  (46.28)                   -                       (46.28)                  

Fair valuation on mutual fund 0.02                 0.13                       -                       0.15                     

MAT Credit entitlement (0.44)               0.44                       -                       -                       

Employee benefit -                  (0.30)                     -                       (0.30)                    

Other Temporary Differences - 

Provisions

-                  (1.78)                     (1.78)                    

77.09               (55.69)                   -                       21.41                    

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

The deferred tax liability represents accelerated tax relief for the depreciation of property plant and equipment and the amortisation of intangible assets and gain on the

fair valuation of mutual fund. Significant components of liability recognized in the balance sheet are as follows:

Significant components of deferred tax 

liabilities / (assets)

Significant components of deferred tax 

liabilities/ (assets)

In Finance Act 2019 ("Act"), corporate tax rate for domestic companies having turnover below 400 crore has been reduced to 25% (Plus surcharge and cess). 

Accordingly, the Company has re-measured its Deferred Tax based on the rate prescribed in the Act and has recognized deferred tax reversal of Rs. 12.92 Crores 

relating to deferred tax as at March 31, 2019 in the statement of Profit & Loss during the year. In addition, Company has recognized a deferred tax credit of Rs. 46.28 

Crores during the year on carry forward unabsorbed depreciation only for those temporary differences which would be utilised beyond tax holiday period basis the 

management projections. 



31 Financial Instruments

(a) Financial risk management objective and policies

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instruments, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

As at March 31, 2021 (INR Crores)

Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Cash and cash equivalents                             -                              -                          1.85                          1.85 1.85                        

Current investments                          9.87                            -                              -                            9.87 9.87                        

Trade receivables                             -                              -                          4.10                          4.10 4.10                        

Security deposits                             -                              -                          3.12                          3.12 3.12                        

Other receivables                             -                              -                              -                               -   -                         

Other current financial asset                             -                              -                          5.17                          5.17 5.17                        

                         9.87                            -                        14.24                        24.11                        24.11 

Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Borrowings                             -                              -                      425.00                      425.00 425.00                    

Trade payables                             -                              -                        27.88                        27.88 27.88                      

Other non current financial liabilities                             -                              -                              -                               -   -                         

Other current financial liabilities                             -                              -                        24.77                        24.77 24.77                      

                            -                              -                      477.65                      477.65                      477.65 

As at March 31, 2020 (INR Crores)

Financial assets FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Cash and cash equivalents                             -                              -                          3.06                          3.06 3.06                        

Current investments                        49.57                            -                              -                          49.57 49.57                      

Trade receivables                             -                              -                        18.86                        18.86 18.86                      

Security deposits                             -                              -                          3.12                          3.12 3.12                        

Other receivables                             -                              -                              -                               -   -                         

Other current financial asset                             -                              -                        13.99                        13.99 13.99                      

                       49.57                            -                        39.04                        88.61                        88.61 

Financial liabilities FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised cost Total carrying value Total fair value

Borrowings                             -                              -                      425.12                      425.12 425.12                    

Trade payables                             -                              -                        57.20                        57.20 57.20                      

Other non current financial liabilities                             -                              -                        14.38                        14.38 14.38                      

Other current financial liabilities                             -                              -                        51.76                        51.76 51.76                      

                            -                              -                      548.45                      548.45                      548.45 

(b) Fair value hierarchy

The company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique-
 Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

 Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

            (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

 Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The below table summarises the categories of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31,2021 and March 31,2020

As at March 31, 2021 (INR Crores)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

- Current investments                          9.87                            -                              -   

As at  March 31, 2020 (INR Crores)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets

- Current investments                        49.57                            -                              -   

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on the balance sheet. Details of significant

accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class

of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 2 and 3.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

31 Financial Instruments (Cont.)

-

(c) Risk management framework

The risk management framework aims to:

- improve financial risk awareness and risk transparency

- identify, control and monitor key risks

- identify risk accumulations

- provide management with reliable information on the Company’s risk situation

- improve financial returns

Treasury management

Financial risk

(i) Liquidity risk

(INR Crores)

Payment Due by Year <1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total

Borrowings *                      425.00                            -                              -                               -                        425.00 

Trade payables and other financial 

liabilites **
                       52.65                            -                              -                               -                          52.65 

Total 477.65                    -                        -                       -                         477.65                   

(INR Crores)

<1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years > 5 Years Total

Borrowings *                      442.70                            -                              -                               -                        442.70 

Trade payables and other financial 

liabilites **
                     108.95                       14.38                            -                               -                        123.33 

Total 551.65                    14.38                    -                       -                         566.03                   

The Company’s treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial markets, monitors and manages the

financial risks relating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include

market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cashflow risk. 

Treasury management focuses on capital protection, liquidity maintenance and yield maximization. The Company’s treasury policies are within the framework of the

overall Holding Company's treasury policies and adherence to these policies is strictly monitored at the Executive Committee meetings. Long-term fund raising including

strategic treasury initiatives are handled with the help of central treasury team. A monthly reporting system exists to inform senior management of investments and debt.

The company has a strong system of internal control which enables effective monitoring of adherence to company’s policies. The internal control measures are effectively

supplemented by regular internal audits.

The Company’s Board approved financial risk policies comprise liquidity, foreign currency, interest rate and counterparty credit risk. The Company does not engage in

speculative treasury activity but seeks to manage risk and optimize interest through proven financial instruments.

The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening the balance sheet. The maturity profile of the

Company’s financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect

the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

 As at March 31, 2021

 As at March 31, 2020

The risk management process is coordinated by the Management Assurance function and is regularly reviewed by the Company’s Audit Committee. The overall internal

control environment and risk management programme including financial risk management is reviewed by the Audit Committee on behalf of the Board.

The company’s businesses are subject to several risks and uncertainties including financial risks. The Company’s documented risk management polices act as an effective

tool in mitigating the various financial risks to which the business is exposed to in the course of their daily operations. The risk management policies cover areas such as

liquidity risk, interest rate risk, counterparty and concentration of credit risk and capital management. Risks are identified through a formal risk management programme

with active involvement of senior management personnel and business managers.Each significant risk has a designated ‘owner’ within the company at an appropriate

senior level. The potential financial impact of the risk and its likelihood of a negative outcome are regularly updated.

Short-term marketable securities not traded in active markets are determined by reference to quotes from the financial institutions; for example: Net asset value (NAV)

for investments in mutual funds declared by mutual fund house. (a Level 1 technique)

The fair value of the financial assets and labilities are at the amount that would be received to sell an asset and paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values.

There is no financial instrument which is classified as level 2 and 3 during the year. There were no transfers between level 1 , level 2 and level 3 during the year. 

The Management assessed fair value of cash & cash equivalents, trade receivables, security deposits, loans, trade payables and other current financial assets and

liabilities as their book values because of their short term maturities.



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2021

(INR Crores)

Total Facility Drawn Undrawn

less than one year -                          -                         -                        

more than two year 16.00                       15.91                     0.09                       

Total 16.00                      15.91                    0.09                      

As at March 31, 2020

(INR Crores)

Total Facility Drawn Undrawn

less than one year -                          -                         -                        
more than two year 445.00                     440.91                   4.09                       

Total 445.00                    440.91                  4.09                      

Collateral security

Details of securities for the borrowing facilities availed by the Company are as below:

(ii) Foreign exchange risk

 

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

Foreign exchange risk comprises of the risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates may have an impact on the statements of profit or loss and statement of change in equity where any transaction references more than one currency or

where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The Company does not have any foreign currency expsoure as

on  March 31, 2021.

The Company had access to following funding facilities :

*Includes Non-current borrowings, current borrowings, current maturities of non-current borrowings and committed interest payments.

**Includes current financial liabilities, excludes current maturities of non-current borrowings and committed interest payments on borrowings.



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

31 Financial Instruments (Cont.)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The exposure of the Company’s financial assets & financial liabilities as at March 31, 2021 to interest rate risk is as follows:

(INR Crores)

Floating Rate Fixed Rate Non Interest Total

Financial Assets 9.87                        1.79                       12.45                     24.11                      

Financial Liabilities 425.00                   52.65                     477.65                    

The exposure of the Company’s financial assets & financial liabilities as at March 31, 2020 to interest rate risk is as follows:

(INR Crores)

Floating Rate Fixed Rate Non Interest 

Bearing

Total

Financial Assets 49.57                       1.79                       37.16                     88.51                      

Financial Liabilities -                          425.12                   123.33                   548.45                    

-                          -                         -                        -                         

(this space has been intentionally left blank)

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency arises where the Company holds monetary assets and liabilities denominated in a currency different to the functional

currency, with US dollar being the non-functional currency. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency

exchange rate, liquidity and other market changes.

The company has no foreign currency exposure as on March 31, 2021 & March 31, 2020

The company is exposed to interest rate risk on long-term floating rate instruments and on refinancing of fixed rate debt borrowing instruments outstanding as on the

year end. The company’s policy is to maintain a balance of fixed and floating interest rate borrowings and the proportion of fixed and floating rate debt is determined by

current market interest rates. The borrowings of the Company are principally denominated in Indian Rupees. Indian Rupee debt comprising of non convertible debentures

term loan and compulsory convertible debentures is principally at fixed interest rates. These exposures are reviewed by appropriate levels of management on a monthly

basis. The Company invests cash and liquid investments in debt mutual funds, some of which generate a tax-free return, to achieve the company’s goal of maintaining

liquidity, carrying manageable risk and achieving satisfactory returns.

Floating rate financial assets are largely interest bearing security deposits held by the Company. The returns from these financial assets are linked to bank rate notified by

Reserve Bank of India as adjusted annually. Additionally, the investments portfolio is independently reviewed by CRISIL Limited, and our investment portfolio has been

rated as “Very Good” meaning highest safety.



VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

31 Financial Instruments (Cont.)

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Increase in interest rates

Year Ended    

March 31, 2021

Year Ended 

March 31, 2020

0.50% 0.05                       0.25                       

1.00% 0.10                       0.50                       

2.00% 0.20                       0.99                       

O.5% to 2% reduction in interest rate would have an equal and opposite effect on the company's financial statements.

(iii) Counterparty and concentration of credit risk

(INR Crores) (INR Crores)

Particulars As at

March 31, 2021

As at

March 31, 2020

Neither impaired nor past due                                       3.12                                       3.12 

Due less than one month                                       9.06                                    26.79 

Due between 1 to 3 Months                                       0.15                                       0.56 

Due between 3 to 12 Months                                       0.03                                       3.76 

Due Greater than 12 Months                                       0.03                                       1.74 

Total                                     12.39                                    35.97 

None of the company’s cash equivalents are past due or impaired. Regarding trade and other receivables and other non-current assets, there were no indications as at

March 31, 2021, that defaults in payment obligations will occur, other than those for which provision has already been taken in the financial statements. 

Of the year end  trade receivables and other financial assets, the following balance were past due but not impaired as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 :

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined

on a case to case basis with reference to the customer’s credit quality and prevailing market conditions. Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables

are those that have not been settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that customer.The company based on past experience does not expect

any material loss on its receivbles and hence no provision on account of ECL.

The credit quality of the Company’s customers is monitored on an ongoing basis and assessed for impairment where indicators of such impairment exist. The Company

uses simplified approach for impairment of financial assets. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss is used to provide for impairment

loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime expected credit loss is used. The solvency of the debtor and their ability to repay the receivable is

considered in assessing receivables for impairment. Where receivables have been impaired, the Company actively seeks to recover the amounts in question and enforce

compliance with credit terms

The carrying value of the financial assets and Current investments other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure. The company’s maximum exposure to credit

risk as at March 31, 2021 is Rs.12.39 Crores (March 31, 2020 Rs.35.97 Crores).

The table below illustrates the impact of a 0.5% to 2.0% increase in interest rates on interest on financial assets/ liabilities (net) assuming that the changes occur at the

reporting date and has been calculated based on risk exposure outstanding as of date. The year end balances are not necessarily representative of the average debt

outstanding during the year. This analysis also assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant.

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of

only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The

company is exposed to credit risk for receivables, cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments and loans and advances.

The Company does not expect any material risk on account of non-performance by any of the Company’s counterparties as approximate 64% receivables as on March

31,2020 is pertaining to fellow subsidiairy. The history of trade receivables shows a negligible provision for bad and doubtful debts therefore the company does not expect

any material risk on account of non performance by any of the company's counter parties.

For short-term investments, counterparty limits are in place to limit the amount of credit exposure to any one counterparty. Defined limits are in place for exposure to

individual counterparties in case of mutual funds schemes.



32 Capital Management

INR Crores

 As at 

 March 31, 2021 

 As at 

 March 31, 2020 

Short-term borrowings (ICL) 425.00                -                    
Current maturities of long term debt (Note 16) -                     425.12                
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) (1.85)                  (3.06)                  
Current investments (Note 8) (9.87)                  (49.57)                
Net debt (a) 413.28                372.49               

Total Equity (b) 11.59                  20.05                  

Net debt to equity ratio (c = a/b) 35.67                  18.58                 

33 Service Concession arrangement

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the net debt to equity ratio. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital

requirements. 

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order

to support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains

unchanged from previous year.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans.

The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation, convertible and non convertible debt securities, and

other short term and Long term borrowings. The company's policy is to use current and non current borrowings to meet anticipated funding

requirement.

Net debt are long term and short term debts as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and current investments. Equity

comprises all components including other comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company:

The Company has been engaged in coal berth mechanization and upgradation at Visakhapatnam port. The project is to be carried out on a

design, build, finance, operate, transfer basis and the concession agreement between Visakhapatnam Port Trust ('VPT') and the Company was

signed in June 2010. In October 2010, the Company was awarded with the concession after fulfilling conditions stipulated as a precedent to

the concession agreement. Visakhapatnam port trust has provided, in lieu of license fee an exclusive license to the Company for designing,

engineering, financing, constructing, equipping, operating, maintaining, and replacing the project/project facilities and services. The

concession period is 30 years from the date of the award. The upgraded capacity is 10.18 mmtpa and the Visakhapatnam port trust would be

entitled to receive 38.10% share of the gross revenue as royalty. The Company is entitled to recover a tariff from the user(s) of the project

facilities and services as per its Tariff Authority for Major Ports(TAMP) notification. The tariff rates are linked to the Wholesale Price Index

(WPI) and would accordingly be adjusted as specified in the concession agreement every year. The ownership of all infrastructure assets,

buildings, structures, berths, wharfs, equipment and other immovable and movable assets constructed, installed, located, created or provided

by the Company at the project site and/or in the port’s assets pursuant to concession agreement would be with the Company until expiry of

this concession agreement. The cost of any repair, replacement or restoration of the project facilities and services shall be borne by the

Company during the concession period. The Company has to transfer all its rights, titles and interest in the project facilities and services free

of cost to VPT at the end of the concession period. Intangible asset port concession rights represents consideration for construction services.

No Revenue from construction contract of service concession arrangments on exchanging construction services for the port concession rights

was recognised for the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020.

(this space has been intentionally left blank)
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Notes forming part of the  financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

VIZAG GENERAL CARGO BERTH PRIVATE LIMITED

The Company has only one business segment primarily the supply of cargo handling and storage services and operates in one

geographical segment. Accordingly, disclosures relating to operating segments under the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on

“Operating Segments” notified under section 133 read with Rule 4A of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company for

current year. Revenue from one customer amounting to Rs. 41.13 Crores (March 31, 2020 Rs. 56.18 Crores revenue from two

customers ) exceeded 10% of the total revenue of company. All the company's revenue , trade receivable and non current asset are in

India.

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where necessary, to confirm to this year's classification.

The Company has net current liabilities amounting to Rs.454.55 Crores mainly on account of ICL which are due for repayment in 

Sep’21. The directors have received an unconditional letter of support from Vedanta Limited,the parent company, who will provide 

financial support to the Company to enable it to meet its obligations as and when they fall due and to carry on its current business for 

the next 12 months. Thus, the financial  statements  have  been  prepared  on  going concern basis. Further, the Management has also 

considered industry reports, economic indicators and general business conditions to make an assessment of the implications arising out 

of  business caused due to COVID-19. The Company considers this as short term in nature, since operations of the of the Company were 

not impacted during the year except for the period of nationwide lock down during quarter ended June 30, 2020,  and will not impact the 

Company in long run as Company deals in coal based cargo handling activities which is essential commodity for various power and steel 

plants all across India. The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health pandemic related to COVID -19 as well as actual cargo 

traffic and port tariffs considering the long period may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these financial 

statement.
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